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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
(a) Background information

Tlrika Technical Training hrstitute was established under the TVET Act/ 2013 in2Ol7 wa
certificate ntunber TVETA/Public/TVC/0008/2Ol7.The entity is domiciled in Kenya and
has no branches. The institute is under the Ministy of Education.
It stands on 45 acres of land. Its history dates back to 1949when it was started as a
vocational naining centre for former World War II servicemen which was then elevated to
a Technical high school where primary graduates were admitted for secondary education
with a technical base. The tnstitute is located in Thika Town along General Kago Road
next to Thika Level 5 District Hospital.

The Instinrtion has Nine admitting deparunents with over fifty courses being offered.

(b) Principal Activities

i) Mandate

The principal mandate of flre entity is to provide quality training in technical, industrial,
vocational and entrepreneurship. The mandate of the institute is through registation under
the Ministry of Higher Education Scieuce and Technology tmder the Education Act Cap
21 I under the first schedule. It is also guided through its operations by other Acts of
Parliament like KNEC Act, TSC Act, KIE Act KASNEB Act, among others.

ii) Vision

To be the cenffe of excellence in Technical, lndtutrial, Vocational and Entrepreneurship

Trairing

ru) Mission

To provide Training, Research and Ouneach Programmes that impart skills and utilize

applied knowledge to spur economic growth and solve problems in society.

iv) Core functions

/ To give quality training and services
r' To mould wholesome individuals
./ To uphold teamwork in all our undertakings
,/ To enhance linkage with indushies
/ To enhance linkage with other institutions
./ To uphold research and development
/ To uphold innovation and creativity.

ll
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(d)

v) Core values

r' Quality fraining Ethical practices
/ Fairness and equity{ Team work
'/ Transparency and accounkbility{ Respect ofrule of law,/ Cleanliness and orderliness/ Efficiency and efficary

(c) Key ll{anagement

The entity's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
{ The Board of Governors
{ Accounting Officer
r' Management team

Fiduciary Management

Jhe key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th Jure
2021 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

I Principal Hannah N. Mburu
2. Deputy principal Administation Gerald N. Kigia
3 Deputy principal Academics Benson M. Kioko
4 Registrar Joseph. Gachau Muchangi
5 Dean of students Mary K Mungai
6 Head of Finance Stephen N. Wairirna

Name ofthe Committee Members

Finance & Operations
Cornmittee

l. Peris Muniafu
2. Stephen Chongoti
3. Alex Mwaniki

- Chairperson
- Mernber
- Mernber

Audit & Risk Committee
1. Eng. George Matoke - Chairperson
2.Danochieng - Member
3. AIex Mwaniki - Member

Academic Committee
1. Rebecca Mpaayei
2.DanOchieng

- .1. Stephen Chongoti

- Chairperson
- Member
- Member

ill
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION Ar{D MANAGEMENT (Conrinued)

Finance & Operations committee activities

The Committee exercise the powers of BoG in financial matters as provided i.n the TVET act

2013, on which the Committee advises the BoG.

Tenns of Reference: The role ofthe Committee is to coordinate and mobilize financial resources

of the institute on behalf of flre BoG in addition to advising the BoG on those matters referred to

above, the Committee's responsibilities include:

r' To receive reports from the Principal and the Finance Officer on financial matters.

'/ To receive reports of the extent and condition of the institute including the efficiency of
space utilisation, the consumption of energy and the adequacy of property insurance

arrangements.

{ To consider the adequacy ofthe institute and proposals for its maintenance and development,

including opportunities to dispose of and acquire new properties.

'/ To determine the fees and charges made for institute services aud facilities.

r' To ensure the proper financial evaluation and control ofprojects.

'/ To supervise amangements of investing Institute's firnds and monitoring of investnents

performance.

Audit & Risk Committee activities

The Committee exercise the powers of the BoG in Audit and risk matters as provided in the TVET

act20l3, on which the Committee advise the BoG.

Tenns ofReference: The role ofthe Committee is to audit the use ofresources and asses risk

status of the institute on behalf of the BoG. The Committee's responsibilities include:

r' To monitor and facilitate the implementation of the institute's shatery with regard to

financial rnatters.

{ To strpelise flre arrangements for safeguarding the lnstitute's assets.

,/ To strbmit an annual satement on its activities to the BoG.

r' To keep under review, the activities of the Institute's various deparnnents.

r' To supervise the financial administration of the institute and make recommendations to flre

BoG where appropriate.

tv
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KEY ENTITY TNFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (continuect)

Academic Committee activities

The Committee exercise the powers of the BoG in academic rnatters on which the Cornmiuee

advises the BoG.

Terms of Reference: The role of the Commiffee is to ensure academic standards and quality, and,

in fulfilling this function, ensures acadernic freedom, academic integriry and high standards in
research, assessment and admissions. The Committee's responsibilities include:

/ Formulate, coordinate and review academic policy, procedures and guidelines within the

institute.

{ Promote oxcellence in teaching aud learning.

r' Oversee the qualify assurance ofthe academic wor-k.

/ Facilitate free intellectual enquiry and ensure acadernic integnty.

{ Consider and make decisions on all aspects of the development and accreditation or re-

accreditation of education courses, the admission of studerts, teaching assessment and

requirements for graduation, prizes and awards and.

r' Advise on the academic aspects of Institution's stmtegic, operational and risk manageurent

plans and to foster discourse on issues related to higher education and Institution's Vision

and Goals.

Government oversight activities

Tlte Governmeut of Kenya's oversiglrt role include provision of Grants for both Operations/

Capatation and Development funds as well as provision of the regulatory framework. The audit of
the Institution's activities is undertaken by flre Auditor General.

(f) Ministry of Education
State department ofvocational and Technical training
P.O. Box 9583 - 00200
Jogoo House B,
Hararnbee Avenue
Nairobi, KENYA

v
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KEY ENTITY INFORITIATION AI\D MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

(h)

ThikaTechnical Training Institute
P.O Box 9l - 01000
Telephone: (254) 700777799, (020) 2044965
E-mail : flrikatechnical@gmail.com
Website: www.thikatechnical.ac.ke

Entity Bankers

l. Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

2. Absa Bank ofKenya
Thika branch
P.O Box 219 - 0100

Kenyatta Highway - Thika

3. Equity Bank
Thika Equrty Plaza branch
P.O.Box 253-01000
Thika

4. NCBA Bank
NCBA Building, Uhuru Street,
P.O. Box 44599-00100
Nairobi

5. Family Bank
Thikatown
P.O Box 74145-00200,

Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, trnstitute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(i)

c)

vt
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IL THE BOARD O[' GOVERNORS

I

Dr. Joseph Muguthu
- Ph.D. in Mech manufacture &
Automation
-Master of Philosophy in
Teohnologi cal Blucdion

-BED - Technology Education

- Chairman of ttre Board
- Lecturer Kenyatta university with over 7 years
- Lecturer at Technical institutions for I I years
- Maths Physic teacher - Hekima Girls - 2 years
- Has published manyjournals and papers.
- He is an Independent member

- Date of Birth: Date ofBirth 14 Dec,7972

2. - MBA-Stategic Management
- BSC - Sfategic Management

Peris Muniafu - Date ofBirth ...1967
- Chairs Finance and operations Commitree- Certified Custodian from IFF (UK)
- BankManager-NBK
- Tmstee NBK StaffPension Fund

Executive Career coach and RMT chairperson
She ants member

3.
- Date of Birth 166 Dec 1963

- BSc(Maths) - B. University Canada
- Diploma- Farm Machinery
Mechanics Canada

Stephen Chongoti
Engineering Ltd
Director & Founder -Mtandao ltd
Manager/Systems administation - Telkom.

InforrrationChief TDeputy Officerechnology
He anls member

&F &- Contour

4.

- Long serving Engineering Asst in public service- Sfategic Developmentprogramme
- Performance management
- Project implementation programme
- He is an Independent member

5

George M.K Matoke

-Date of Birth Zm luty tgSg
-Pursuing PHD - Renewal energy
-MSc- Engineering systems & mgt

Daniel Ochieng Ogola

- Date of Birth 6ft April 1967

- Masters {ommunity health &
development

- BSc - (Hons) KU

-Bachelor of Industrial

- Project teclmical advisor - Hry/AIDS program
- Consultancy-National Agriculture Sector

Growth and Transformation Stategy (ASGTS)
- Project officer- Skilled care initiative project.
- He is an Independent member

6. Date of Birth l2th Sept 1972

BSC Computer Science

i Alex Mwaniki
- Management courses - British Council
- Microsoft Certified professional - Data Canter
- Project management
- Senior data aualyst
- He is an Independent member

7
Master of Science - Usiu

Bachelor of Science - Usiu

Rebecca Rayon Mpaayei - Date of Birth 9ft August 1971
- Chairs Academic Committee
- 23 years of experieirce in manageinent,

leadership, capacity building and exporting
- Manager, GenderMainstreaming & Wornen dev
- She is an Independent member

lttl
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IV. CHAIRI\,IAN'SSTATEMENT

I am pleased to report that Thika Teclurical Training lnstinrte (rrrl) has continued to perfonn well in
retu:ring exemplary examination results of the Kenya National Examinations Corurcil (KNEC). I take this
opportunity to share with you my views on the key initiatives and achievements we lave had over tle year

on economic perfonnance, Education sector changes, financial performance, operations & risks associated

with flre Institution, and lastly our future outlook.

Economic Focus

In order to ensure efficient and effective provision of Technical Vocational Training, we have developed
necessary policies and institutional framework to direct the running of the Institution in line with visio,
2030, the Big 4 Agenda and Sustainable Development Goals. In the recent past, the institute has experienced
temendous growth in student enrolment from which we have projected an average of 21o/oannual growth
for 2021, based on S9 current 7,300 in 2020 fro.mthat of 5,500 students in20l9.
We thank the Government of Kenya for providing state-of-flre- art fraining equipment, capitation and

employnent of Trainers through the devolved system by the Public Service Commission that has greatly
confibuted towards increased student enrolment and improved quality of raining to enable the institute
align her graduates with regional.and global hends and innovation.

Successes

During the year, we have wihessed a positive growth in student enrolment owing to reduction in fees
payable as a result of Government Capitation approach to ensure affordable Technical Vocational Training
to every high school graduate who has not met the reqtrired tlreshold to join university education. This
initiative oftransition by the governrnent has so far been successfi.rl, and the future looks quite bright indeed.

Dtuing the year, the institution has managed to have Isolation roorns to meet COVID-19 Ministry of Health
Requirements and Offices for teaching staff.

Other major projects are:

. Classrooms using pre-cast Technology, plumbing workshop,

. New sewer line, Cabro works

r Management vehicle, Hostel forthe pWDs,

o Tractor and workshop equipmenl

h the spirit to excel, we endeavour to be a cenre of Excellence in scientific, technological, training and

innovation so as to produce competent graduates who are capable ofintegrating the acquirr:d skills in nation

building in line with Vision 2030 and the Big4 Agenda (i.e. food security, affordable h ousing, turiversal

health and manufacturing). 
ix
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III. MANAGEMENT TEAM

8.

a

Ms. Hannah N. Mburu -
-Date of Bffi:2910111967
-MSC -Applied Mathematics
-Ongoing - PHD iu applied
mathematics

- Principal/Secretary BOG
- She has a vast of experience as a mathematics

teacher ofover 25 years.
- Took over ou 23d Sept 2020 as The principal

in Thika TTI
- Not amember of ICS

I

Masters in Applied Mathematics
Ongoing - PHD applied mathematics

Ms. Hannah N. Mburu Principal/BoG Secretary

2.

I Cerutd Kigia

- Degree in Mechanical Engineering

Deputy Principal -
Adrninistration

3.
-lvlaster in Business Administration

Benson Kioko Deputy Principal -
Academics Affairs

4.

Joseph Gachau Muchangi

- Degree in Mechanical Engineering

Registar

5

Mary Mungai

- Masters in business Adrninistation
- Degee in Psychology & Counselling
- Higher Diploma in Tech Education

.i:'.{'-

Dean of Students

6.

Stephen N. Wairima

- MBA (Finance), B.com (Finance)
- CPA Final
- Certificate in Forensic Audit -
Contract and Procurement Fraud -ICPAK

Finance Officer

vul
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Challenges Faced

The Teclmical Training sector presents plenty of opportunities as well as risks, both of which need to be

analysed in order to deliver sustainable long-term returns, without compromising training outcomes. During

the year, the efiFect of Covid -19 pandemic brought about a financial challe,nge to the institution. The

students were not in the institution for more than a semester and we could not charge them fees which was

part of our budget. However, we faced the challenge positively and addressed the issues at hand.

Disparities in salaries ,unong BoG staff in the institute. This has over the years created dishar:nony and

gene,ral low morale. This has been objectively address which has improved perfonnance.

Thika T.T.I has developed an enterprise risk management policy and framework to ensure that our activities

are aligned with our stategic plan objectives. The Board of Govemors regularly reviews risks identified -

such as competition, information & corrmunications technology and credit and operations; and how the

risks involved can be mitigated by various risk owners.

Outlook

I am indeed deeply indebted to the members of the Board of Govemors for their unwavering support,

commiEnent and futuristic outlook towards realising the institute's olrjectives in line with its stategic plan

and core mandate of naining market-driven technical manpower. Noteworthy is the Board's diverse

qualifications and experience. I unreservedly assure all our Stakeholders we at Thika T.T.I, shall remain

focussed, committed and consistent in the delivery of opportunities and accountably availing of resources

to both trainers and trainees within the Government framework of accountability, corporate govemance and

ethical sustainability. Going forward Thika T.T.I is committed to working closely in collaboration with

other like-minded entities, institutions, agencies and any other bi-lateral & multi-lateral agencies involved

in technical and vocational training to ensure that our fiainees continue to receive Competency Based

Training.

Lastly, I would like to whole-heartedly flrank my fellow members of the Board of Govemors, Management,

Trainers, Trainees - and all other stake-holders for their co-operation, collaboration, continued support and

commitnent during this period under review.

Dr Joseph

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF GOVERNORS
l}nMay,2022.

r
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V. ItUPt}R'T,t}}"I;HE I'RINCiPAL

Thika Technical Training institute is well placed to providing adequate and relevant tairiing to her
graduates that will enable flrem to contibute towards the attainment of our county,s Vision 2030 strategic
obiectives- In fi.rrtherance of our mandate therefore. we have committed ourselves to consistentlv and
reqtlerlv review imnrove nnd cnnsnlidafe nrrr acad'e.mic nrosrems in severnl wavs thnt wilt ensrrre their
Competitiveness in terms of quality and relevamce.

Wrtn'me guoance or rne troverrun$ rrbafu, \ve ti,brxeo hatt rh settrirg up stiubtrues airo poucres aureq ac

guding the institution in the riglrt strategic direction. We were able to tansition from ISO 9001-2008 to
ISO 9001 :2015 oertification duriug the year. Under rny ,ieadership ard,iho overall direction of the lrstitute's
Board we were able also to be in the forefront in ensuring ttrat financial resources were utilized efficiently
and effectiveiy for optril0rt outptlt. Desgiite the many chailenges brought about by Covid pandemic frar
led to economic constaints, the Institute nevertheless continued to discharge its mandate of training,
rosearcn ano outreach,

Dunng tle year a master plan has been developed to allow tbr the msutuuon to become a centre of
erxcellence md of national impact througlr; defining a vision for its funre growth for the next 25 years,
providing an integrated spatial growth framework as a basis forcoordinated programming ofcapital projects
^.-...1'^^J^.,^t..-.^.^..r,-f,,.t.-.-:.^t!..f.^^l."..^l:'-..4ncr'l trvll 6 tl9'r.\irvPruwut"ur grrj jiJc rnniiJuuwiuru dv furpiriv Jiiuwrwuv; ,- uvr vrw seurerJ s\r uqu,E.

TL., L-i"i"iir.. L^ ..1o., 
^rrorr.Lir*.i i.o ir..ro...g,,o *;aL C; .,r.r1r....rr, ....i^rr^.5 ^r.. i.,r..o,...,o.

HIGIILIGHTS OF FV 2O2OI2O2I PERFORMANCE
Sft!.lonla Fnralnanrf.

d . I lr 
^ ^6rAnAt 

r t. t r .,1 ., a ., , 6rrF,r.Lt9 l luaulvlau .t lyan Lv.t-vl Lv!-t Dt4ltutt uu a r.rEu uu| wrul urr- rrrtrvwrrulrvut t\ryllr u., u[sutv r y rr I tgDuLuu(2tD

absorb as many Form 4leavers as possible.

In a move to boost student enrolme,nt the Govemment has sustained Capitation to all joining and current
studeats. Annual students fee remained as capped in all Technical Institutions & National Polytechnics at
Kch 56,4?O/: rrrlrr'h. the instihrtinn hac cpf crrnnnrf e\/ctem fnr the neerlrr cfirdenfs fn annlw fnr LIEI R

FY 202012021 enrolment was met with a challenge ofthe Covid - 19 pandemics that led to turtimely closgre
ofthe Institutions. This Kept the September Intake students waiting till the end of the Fy
The student population over the last 5 years is as below
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Projects Undertaken

Dtrring the Financial Year under review, The Board was able to successfully cornplete and hand over

Muranga TVC which was under her mentorship and continues to mentor other institutions narnely; Gichugu

TVC, atd Kiharu TVC. These two institutions were over 75% cornpletion by the end of the financial year.

Departmental Equipmen t:

Thika T.T.I is sincerely grateful to the Government for considering our institute througlr equipping our

B.C.E, Mechanical and Automotive deparffient with State of the Art Training equiprnent. The Board of

Governors has as well continued to equip deparhnents with agriculnral Engineering acquiring a new tractor,

boom sprayer, disc plough and others.

Contribution to the Big 4 Agenda

The institution continues to equip our students with the relevant competency and skills, as Artisans, Crafts

and Diplomas. I have confidence that our students are well equipped with the necessary skills that

sEategically aligns them with opporhrnities within the county, regionally and globally at the same time

conhibuting to the realization of the Big4 Agenda: Health, Manufachring, Affordable Housing and Food

security.

Thika Technical Training Institute being a Tertiary institution desires to enhance its visibility, performance,

and competitiveness in the tertiary education sector in the face of stiff competition. To do so, however the

Institute requires a lot of support from the Govenrment and other stakeholders in this crucial hansitional

stage to a National Institute in terms of funding material support and other contributions. We shall continue

to appeal for such support for several years to come.

On behalf of the lnstitute Board and Management, I take this opportunity to thauk the Governrnent for its

unequivocal support during the year tmder review.

I also appreciate the financial, material and moral support of our collaborators, partners and friends during

the year. It is because of the understanding and guidance of the Chairman of the Board as well as the

cooperation of the Management tearn, all staff and our shldents that we ended the year within an

euvironment of peace and stability. I wish to register my sincere gratitude to them all.

I look forward to their continued support in the new financial year and the years ahead.

HANNAH MBURU
PRINCIPAL/SECRETARY TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Date: 10th May,2022. 
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YT STATEME}TT OF PERFORMAI\CE AGA INST PREDETERM INED OBJECTI VES

Thika Technical Training Instinrte has 8 strategic pillars and objectives within its Srategic Plan for the FY
201812019- 2022/2023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

INFRAST
RU

PMENT
CTURE 

DEVELO

BORATIO
NANDL

INKAGES

COLLA

FINANCI
AL RESOURCES

RESEARCHgDEV
PMENTELO

Thika Technical Training Institute develops its annual work plans based on the above 8 pillars. Assessment

of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is doue on a quarterly basis. The Institute achieved

its nerfonnance farsets set for fhe FY 2M.O/?.O21 neriorl for its 8 stratesic nillars as indicaferl in fhe diaoram

belovi,:

xlll



THIKA TECHMCAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCI.AL STATEMENTS
FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Pillar 1:
Infrastruchre
development

TDilhr'lr

TEffiffigy
and Ict
infrasfucture

knproving
and
increasing
physical
facilities

Completion of
buildings under
constuction,
Complete the
projects for
institutions being
mentored

Develop a framework
for improving and
increasing physical
tracilities
Improve TVET
equipment, information
& communication

Completed Mega tent,
Cabro works,
Riometric Svsfem

Reading sheds

Precast tuition classes

Walkways etc

Stmteeic
Pillar

Objective Key performance
indicators

Activities Achievements

LIse cf
modern
technologi
es and

Improve

Information
System

J /-nnnla;ia I-l.aT

infrastructures,,/ Installation of
Management
Information
System

r' ICT courses

Ds".'elcp adsqu:ts ICT
capa.crty and
infrastmcture
Institutionalized
Managemmt
Inforrration System
Promote theuse of ICT
in Curriculum delivery
& management syste,ms

frr--ruror{ ff-1'

infrastnrcture -more
rooters and computers

-Installation of ERP MIS
- Moodleplatform for
online learning that has

enhanced blended leaming
Pillar 3:
Collaboration
and Linkages

Enhance
collaborati
on and
Iinkages

r' Development
partners on
board

Mentorship

/ Establish
collaborations and
linkages

/ Strengthen existing
collaboration and
linkages

r' Eshblish benchmarks
-..t:^:.., ---.--.-tia.tiu J OUii Coup€itiJoii
networks with
intemational TVET
institutions

The lnstitute has the
following collaborations
and linkages.
(i)Commonwealth of
Leaming (C.O.L)
(ii) Housing Finance
Foundation
tz^....^ r7-t-:-t-r\Euya Y cruulti
Manufactures
(iii) GiZ cooperative
trainine

lmprove
institr-rtional

corporate
govemance

Pillar 4:
Institutional
Gove,rnance

&E Systems

Develon and

knplement

implement
institutional policies,
strategies, and
progmmmes (8.9,
Hrv/ArDS)
Embrace results
basoti rnarragcrncrr i iu
the training system
Develop and
implement M&E
systems
Fast track
institutional
expenditue review

EstablishmentofM&E
Office
Esablishment of career
seryrlces office
Aligning the instinrte
structure with flre
ministry
rectruunsrrtiatitrs
lnplementation of
Greening Gender, ADA
and HIV policy

Constant review
ofcourses
offered
hnproved result
based
managementin
the training
systorrr
Improved
budget accuacy
level

Develop

xlv



TITTI'A

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JTJNE 2021

Irnplementation of HR
manual.

Developme,nt of Staff
Appraisal System

Pillar 6:
Financial
Resources

lncreased ntunber
of staffto match
the increasing
number of
students

/ Increase staffat TSC
and BoG levels

r' Develop
competencies in staff

r' Diversify
sources

and

mcrease

frrading

New development Increase GoK firnding r' Implementation of tlre
Budget and

procurement plan as a

Contol tool

parfiers
Enhanced
parirrers'

Exploit extemal
fimding possibilities
tiuougir tieveioptxi
criteria
Expand income
ge,neration at
institutional level

relationship
lncrease in
government

P!!!+r 7:
Access and
Equity

F.vnanrf

educational
programmes

and increase

access

Enhance
publicity
and

marketing

,/ Imnrnva.d

training
prograrnmes in
MSE sector.

'/ Expansion of
facilities

r' kopote.d affrmative
action for TVET trainees

r' Reformed and enhanced
guidance and

counselling services.
/ . )--:u^J --l-^-4 1 ^f' flullrltuiu t )uurt I ul

ABT level 6 tluough
cooperative fraining

Pillar 8:
Research
and
develooment

effective
research and
developrnent

research
committee
Attempt to hold
intemal
conference and
regional
knowledge
shorino fnnrrnovr^ds.b

Develop mechanisms
for R&D collaboration
among TVET
institutions.

/ Promote the use of
research results in
technolory
development and
tanstbr

/ Develop R&D
infrastructure

lr' Creation of research and
development section.

r' Dev. elooment of rese-arc.h-'- ''-r
and developmeut policy
Participated in TVET
Fairs and exhibitions and
career fairs.

r' Participated in
international conferences
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VII. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Technical Training Institute is committed to good corporate govemance, which promotes the long-tenn
interests of the Govemment of Kenya and any other stakeholder; stengthens Board and management

accountability and helps build public fust in the Institute.

Attendance of board meetings

Dtning FY 2020/2m1, there was 99Yo eligible attendance in all meetings of the Board and Comrnittees.
The following table shows the number of full board meetings held during 2O2O/2O2l,the attendance of
each Member;

Stephen Chongoti
(Member)

George M.K Matoke
(MembeD

D^^-I ^f ,L^',^6ed ^L^"1, m^^+ ^+ laaat aaaa ^.,-, f^,,- .aaarlra E,,^-, *^^.-:-^ ^f +L^ E ^^-.t ^fuwu va vvyvluvro Jllvulu ulevL c. reot v[wv wvvrJ tvu ulvtluJ. LvvrJ trrvvturtsr ur lit\, iJvariu va

Governors is convened by glving at least fourteen days' notice in writing to every member unless three

quarters of the total members of the Board of Govemors otherwise agree.

There wereT full board meetinp during the year.

Prior to the beginning of each year. Board meetings are scheduled in line with the key financial reporting

dates. A more detailed agenda togeflrer with the Board papers are disributed in a timely rnanner before each

Board rneeting. All Members receive sufficient relevant information on financial, Academics and

development issues to enable informed decisions to be taken by flrem during meetings.

Member

zgth
July
2024

7th

Octo
2020

11th

Noy
2420

l3th
May
2020

26,fi
Jan
2021

31rt
March
2021

3oth

June
202t

Total
meetings
attended

Sitting
allowance
per day

DR. Joseph
Muguthu
(BOG Chainnan)

l'resent ttesent ttesent Itesent Present ttesent ttesent 'trt 21,500

Hannah Mburu
(Principal)

N/A Present Present Present Present

fresent
I I

Present 617 N/A

Peris Muniafu
(Member)

Present Present Present Present Present Present 717 18,000

Present

Present

Present 

l***,
Present 

f***

Present

hesent

Present 

|P***
Absent 

fo*,

Present

Present

717

617

18,000

I8,000

Dan Ochieng Ogola
(Member)

Present Present Present Present Present Pre,sent 7/7 18,000

Alex Mwaniki
(Member)

Pre-cent Pre-sent Present Prese-nt Prese,n! 1/7 18,000

Rebecca Rayon
Mpaayei (Member)

Present Present Present Absent 6/7 18,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEIIENT (Continued)

The Institute's corporate govemance materials, including the Corporate Govemance Guidelines, the

Institute's legal order, flre terms and reference for each Board cornmittee, the Instinrte's Codes of Business

Conducl communication channel and the Institute's public poliry engagement and technological

contibutions policy.

The Members have a balance and depth of skills and experiencg together with knowledge ofthe Institute's
operations, which enables them to discharge theirrespective duties and responsibilities effectively.
The Board Chairperson's priruary role is to ensrue the effective running of the Board and that as a whole it
plays a full and constructive palt in the development and detennination of the Group's strategy and overall
commercial obj ectives.

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-tenn success of the Institute.

There is a fonnal schedule ofmatters reserved for consideration by the Board, which include responsibility
for the following:

D approval of overall Institute strategy aud objectives.

ii) approval of the annual budget and monitoring progress towards its achievement.

iii; review and approval of the annual financial statements.

iv) approval of Institute's financing arrangements from donors and other government agencies.

v) approval of major unbudgeted expenditure.

These reserved matters are reviewed by the Board, at least annually, to ensure they remain appropriate

and complete. The board Members are Non-executive.

Board performance -.
Performance evaluatiotts identi$ and record achievements, trainfirg requirements and areas for

improvement in relation to annual objectives and performance of their respective roles, in order to

consider effectiveness. Objectives for the forttrcoming year are defined along with identification of how

achievements will be met,target dates and details of resource constraints or issues to ensure that actions

are planned and taken as a result ofthe evaluation process.

We strive to provide the highest quality of training to our students by;

i) Being courteous, fair, ethical and professional.

ii) Being positive and helpful and provide reasons for any decisions we make.

iii) Providing assistance when required.

iv; Answering enquiries orrequests accurately and in a timely manner

v) Treating our stafi Contractors and Suppliers honestly and wiflr respect.

viy Keeping the Institute clean, tidy and free from any damage.

Board charter

The Board of Govemors have a board eharter in place
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vuI. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Thika Technical Trainiug Institute being a Key driver to the attainment of the BIG 4 agenda ensures that it
is consistenfly delivering maximum value to her tainees tlrough; Competency Based Curriculum,
kurc','gtigns a:rd Lllkeges te the jcb narket strategrce!!;, allgning them rvlth epportunlties latio::al!1,,
reglonally and gl obally.

The krstitution has unrelenting focus on improving and maintaining excellent Technical and Vocational
Training across her specialties.

Ongrational and financial Performance
During the financial year 2020/2021, the operations of the institution both current and development were
affected by Covid pandemic that led to the closure of the institution by the Government for a whole te,l:n,
This closure affected the revenue collection and as well the implementation of the budget per quarter.

The revenue collected per quarter in comparison to the previous year was as follows

The expendinre per quarter in comparison to the previous year was as follows:

REVEIIUE COLLECTION PER QUOTA

s/N Year First Quota Second Quota Third Quota Fourth Quota TOTAL

A 2019/2020 65 I 1 J 109

B 2020/2021 t37 t2

B.A t 96.00 703 I t79.00 52.00I

EXPENSES PER QUOTA

S/r\I Year Flrst Quota Second Quota Third Quota Fourth TOTAL

A 20t9/2020 783 53 190 37 t37

B 2020/2021 101 720 92 99 t

B-A t2 t4s. 47 4t 477 442.00 I
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IIfANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
During tlre fina[cial year 2020/2021, the institution undertook several new majorprojects
These projects include:

During the year under review, the institute reported an improved income posifiou even though the year
was also disrupted by the outbreak of Covid 19. In the year 2019/2020, the government released
capitation for only three quarters witlrin the year while in 2O2Ol2O2l capitation was received for all the
quarters within the year. Below is an analysis of income eamed during theyear and the expenditure
incurred in the same period.

a) Revenue analysis

8

s/N
CostI Renovation ofKitchen / Cafeteria 0

2 Removal Asbestos in Classrooms and and with iron sheets 1l I 100
3 Cabro Works within the institution 770
4 renovations on and I 5
7 Conversion of2 blocks into PWD Hostels with a wall 19

Construction of sewer line I
9 Renoriation and extension of 77
1t s arearBehind BCE and AG 7
12 Constructions Shades with slabs 107 t20
l3 Rehabilitation and Extension of student Centre 3,559,919
t4 Construction of Precast classrooms

TOTAL 90,175,365

2 50000000

2 00000000

1 50000000

I00000000

50000000

0
'Iransfers frorn the Rendering ot Hental reverrue fronr

ItJational servirrc,i, l:eL,s from faciiities anri
Uovern[)(]nt * stude'nts (,qllipment

rncome

Cjther inconte

2019/2020 l(shs

granls,/ gilts in kinrl

. 2020/2021 l(shs
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

b) Expenses analysis

!!I llll$l r ccurlcrl r fturrurg iusiituic curupiiatcc wilir siliuirrry rcquir3ncuis

Thika Technical Training institute complies to deduction and remittance of statutory deductions such
NHIF, NSSF and PAYE
Mtjor rlsksfacing the otgmlsmiox.

The instinrtes' majorrisks are mainly related to its core business which is training and human resource
development. Some of the identified risks include;

i. Sardent tumover- this brings about ttre risk oflosing firnds from student who exit the institution
without followiug the set clearing procedures.

ii. Inadequate student accommodation and support facilities
iii. Delayed disbursement of capitation and I{ELB grants

iv. Staffturnover due to inability to retain them
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I)L EI\TVIROIIMENTAL AIYD SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Thika Technical Training Institute e,xists to transfonn lives. It's what guides us to deliver our sfatery,
putting the customer/Citizen first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational
excellence' Below is a highliglrt of snategies and activities that promote the organisation,s stategic
objectives.

Sustainability stratery and profite

The Institution's strategic plan communicates a desire to stengthen our efihrts towards
sustainabilityl The sustainability sfrategic objectives are:

i) Financial sustainabiliqv: aims at Improving Efficiency through cutting costs leading to
reduced wastage of resources.

ii) Academic Sustainabilitv: aims at sustaining results at the level of education, fraining and
research' The sustainability of the educational results (occupational standards, curricula,
teaching and leaming materials, assessment tools) is guaranteed as we adhere to the
regulations aud procedures set by TVETA and TVET-CDACC as far as TVET-level
programs are concemed. The institution has also invested in blended leaming to ensure
continuity in taining and leaming.

iii) : focuses on applying sustainability principles
and practices within the stuctures, philosophies and services, Iearning processes and
physical sites. We have employed key environmental srategies, e.g. on the use of
environmentally ftiendly technologies such as rain water harvesting and also using best
practices in waste disposal especially in ttris COVID l9 era.

iv) Organizational and institutional sustainability: has seen the institution develop meaningfi.rl
cooperation and parherships with the private sector and the industry.

Environmental performance

We have developed environmental policy to guide the organisation in our environmental
perfonnance in addition to environmental guidelines issued by NEMA. We also have an internal
environment office that oversees the enforceme,nt of the environmental policies and guidelines.
The institution has increased its Green spaces. The management is at an advanced stage of setting
guidelines for Solid Waste management and developing a policy on re-cycling of waste.
-bnvtronmentai Llteracy has aiso been rncorporated in techrucal education in the cDAUUlulJ.El
progzms currenfly being rolled out in the institution. This will improve the awareness in
rnanagement/conservation of the environment in the trainers and trainees.
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Human Resource
Procedures and Manual

lnternship Policy and
guidelines

Gender Mainstreaming

Employee welfare

Thika Technical Training kutitute focuses on the welfare ofits staff It has in place human resowce
procedures and manual guides on appraisals and reward systems which are carried out annually and
areas otrmprove'ment tn thelr area of speciatizatron are identrfied and trarnrng of statts is concluctetl.
There is a WIBA which protect staffs when on job haining.
The institution is in the process of developing an occupational safety and health policy though there
is an internal osHA office and committee that oversees flre implementation and enforcement of the
USHA Act 20u'l guicieirnes.

The following are the Thika Technical Training Institute Board policies that guide the hiring
prooess;

Career Progression Regutarly Vacant positions are filled competitively both

Regularly

internally and extemally.
This largely depends on avallability of funds
Terms and conditions of service governing
employees are applied across the board without
discrimination
lntern positions are filled competitivety and
without discrimination
Thika TTI observes equal employment
opportunities during staff recruitment across ail
genders

The institute offers equal emptoyment
opportunities to officers living with dlsabitity.
The institute also offers rights and privileges as
provided in the PWDs Act and Board
employment policies

Regularly

Regularly

DisabilityMainstreaming Regularly

Market place practices-

a) Responsible competition practice - A research on market demand has helped the institution to
offer courses that would shape business strategies and practices, and the context in which they
operate, to take explicit account oftheir social, economic, and environmental impacts. There has
been increased level of engagement with high schools and the general public as the source of
our new students and for increase in brand awareness of Thika Technical Training Institute as a
T\{ET instinrtion of choice in the region and beyond.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplierrelations - the lnstitution places its adverts tbr tenders on
the daily's and on its website for access to all. Payment to suppliers is done within the limited

S/no Title Review Period Remarks
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period of less than Ninety days' othet guidelines like President's directive on Special category

tender opportunities are adhered to.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement - Schools visits are a good opportwrity to meet

students, teachers and parents. These opportunities have a direct irupact on the students where

infonnation is shared and students get an opportunity for career gr.ridance. Outeach missions

are held in collaboration with institutional agencies like clubs and associations and also for
ad-hoc events thatwould add value to marketing our iustitutiot

d) Product stewardship - The Institution ensures ttrat all the courses offered are accredited by ttre
reievanr botiies eg iiASiiEts, KI'.[EC, i\iiT4 Fharmacy & Poisou's tsotrd

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagemenb

Dtuing fte financial year 2020/2021 the institution engaged in charity walks e.g Cancer awareness

walk organized by The Zamben hospital ltd. A donation of Ksh 10,000 was given towards the kitty.

The Institution tbrough the red cross club visited and supported Otto Hoffinan Cente for needy

street children.

The Institute Supports Rotaract club wlrich has had several activities to the community including

sports within the institution.

The Institution offers an opporhrnity to the community in using our facilities like field,

,ry
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X. REPORTOFTHE BOARDOTGOVERNORS

The Board members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2021 which shows the state of Thika Technical Training Institute's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of Thika Technical Training Institute is to provide quality training in technical,

indusrial, vocational and entrepreneurship.

Results

The results of Thika Technical Training Institute for the year ended June 30, 2021 ue set out on page I to
30

BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page VII. During the year no Board
member retired/ resigned.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Thika Technical Training Institute in
accordance with Article22g of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 for the year ended
June 30, 2021.

By Order of the Board

Mburu
PRINCIPAL/BOG SECRETARY
10ftMay,2022..
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XI. STATEMENT OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act,2}tzand (section 14 of the State Corporations Act, and
section 29 ofschedule 2 of flre Technical and Vocational Education and Trainin g Act 2}l3requireflre board
of govemors to prepare financial statements in respect ofthat Institute which give a tue and fair view of the
state of aftirs of the Institute at the end of the financial year and the operating results of the Institute for that
year' The board of governors are also required to ensure that the institute keeps proper accounting records
whidt disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of Thika Technical Training Institute. The
board ofgovernors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ofthe institute

The board of governors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the instihrte,s financial
statements, which glve a true and fair view of the sate of affairs ot Thika Technical Training Institute for a,d
as at the end of the finansial year ended on Jtme 30,2021. This responsibility includes: (i) maintailing
adequate financial management alrangeme,nts aud ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the fltity; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining intemal contols
relevant to the preparation and fair prese,lrtation of the financial stateme,lrts, and ansuring that they are free
from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the entity;
(v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) rnaking accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

The board of govemors accept responsibility for Thika Technical Training lnstinrte financial statements,
which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudant
judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IpSAS), and
in the manner required by the PFM Act 2012 and the TVET Act 2013. The board of govemors are of the
opinion that the institutes financial state,ments Bve a true and fair view of the state of Thika Technical
Training Institute's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, Z)2l,aad,ofthe institute,s financial
position as at that date. The board of governors fi.rther confinn the complete,lress of the accounting records
maintained for the institute, which have been relied upon in the preparation of &e institute's financial
statements as well as the adoquacy ofthe systems of intemal financial confiol.

Nothing has come to the attention of the board members to indicate that the instinrte will not remain a going
concem for at least the next twelve months from the date ofthis statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The institute's financial statements were approved by the Board on 10m May,2022and signed on its behalf
by:

Name: DrJoseph N. Muguthu Name: Hannah N. Mburu.

Signahre. Signature.

Chairman, Board

,

xxvt
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Telephone: +254-(zo) 321 4ooo
E-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAT

En han c ing A c c ount ab i I ity

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING
INSTITUTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

! draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thika Technical Training
lnstitute set out on pages 1 to 30, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report of the Auditor-General on Thika Technical Training Institute for the year ended 30 June, 202 I



amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct,20l5. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Thika Technical Training lnstitute as at
30 June, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Technical and Vocational
Education and Training Act, 2013.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Unsupported Revenue

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 7 reflects a balance of
Kshs. 402,216,288 relating to revenue which includes Kshs.215,568,018 for rendering of
services - fees from students in the year under review out of which Kshs.131,249,070
related to tuition fees. However, the supporting schedules indicating tuition fees arrears
and the current year's tuition fees were not submitted for audit review. Further, the
revenue balance of Kshs.402,216,288 includes an amount of Kshs.4,952,512 relating to
rental revenue collected from fifteen (15) houses. However, available information
provided indicates there were fifty-two (52) rented houses implying that income from
thirty-seven (37) houses was not accounted for.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the total revenue collected of
Kshs.402,216,288 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (!SSAIs). ! am independent of the Thika Technical Training lnstitute
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters which, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Budgetary Control and Performance

The summary statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final
receipts budget and actual on comparable basis totalling to Kshs.405,768,606 and
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Kshs.312,065,224 respectively, resulting to an underfunding amounting to
Kshs.93,703,382 or 23 % of the budget. Similarly, the statement reflects final expenditure
budget and actual on comparable basis totalling to Kshs.329,118,616 and
Kshs.235,459,942 respectively, resulting to an underperformance amounting to
Kshs.93,658,674 or 28 % of the budget.

The underfunding and underperformance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

2. Unresolved Prior Year Matters

The audit report for the previous year highlighted several issues under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of Internal Control and Risk Management. The
matters had not been resolved as at 30 June, 2021.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lav'rfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. lrregular procurement of Teaching and Training Materials

The statement of financial performance reflects an expenditure of Kshs.144,005,644 tn

respect of use of goods and services which, as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements, includes Kshs.19,163,091 relating to teaching and training materials.
Examination of payment vouchers revealed that procurement was done using request for
quotations. However, evidence of existence of an Ad Hoc Opening Committee and an
Ad Hoc Evaluation Committee was not submitted for audit verification. ln addition,
professional opinions issued in respect of the procurements by the Head of Procurement
Function have not been presented for audit verification. This is contrary to Section 84(1)
of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which states that the Head of
Procurement Function of a procuring entity shall, alongside the report to the Evaluation
Committee as secretariat comments, review the tender evaluation report and provide a
signed professional opinion to the Accounting Officer on the procurement or asset
disposal proceedings.

ln the circumstances, the validity of the expenditure of kshs.19,163,091 could not be
confirmed.
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2. lncomplete Project

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment of
Kshs.1,849,334,561 which includes Kshs.7,790,000 Biometric System being work in
progress for the year under review. The system was supposed to integrate with the new
ERP System to monitor student attendance and time monitoring. However, this has not
been achieved and the system is operating as stand-alone, only providing for biometric
access control. A number of modules including procurement module are not in operation
while others are still not fully functional.

ln the circumstances, value for money for expenditure of Kshs.7,790,000 may not have
been obtained.

3. Trade Debtors and Other Receivables

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements
reflects a balance of Kshs.90,472,210 in respect of receivables from exchange
transactions. However, no aging analysis for the student's debts, staff rent debts and
salary advance were submitted for audit verification.

!n the circumstances, the validity and recoverability of the receivables of Kshs.90,472,210
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of a Risk Management Policy and lnternal Audit Function

The lnstitute did not have an active lnternal Audit Department during the year under
review. There were no reports tabled to the Audit and Risk Committee during the first
three quarters for action. Further, the lnstitute did not have a Risk Management Policy.

ln the circumstances, the procedures and strategies put in place to asses, identify,
reassure, prioritize and mitigate risks in the lnstitute could not be confirmed.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Thika Technical Training Instilute for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Governors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public SectorAccounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
lnstitute's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the lnstitute or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

!n addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Governors is responsible for overseeing the lnstitute's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIS will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Report of the Auditor-Generql on Thika Technicql Training Institute for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
lnstitute's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, ! exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the lnstitute's ability to continue as a going concern or to sustain its services. lf !

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Thika Technical Training Institutefor the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the lnstitute to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

o

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the lnstitute to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controlthat are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

29 July, 2022

\
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TIIIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR T}IE YEAR ENDED 30 JTINE 2O2I

xIIr. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANC FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

The notes set out on pages' 6 to 32 form an integral part ofthe Annual Financial Statements.

non-orchange transactions

m kind

Revenuefiom

&omthe Government- 6 177,240,0N 113,972,500
Transfen from National Govemmat grants institrtionsthe for rnentored 6 29,906,260
Totrl Revenue frrm non-exchange transactions 207,046,260 rt3l872)500

erchange transactlonsRevenue from

7 2I5,568,018 192,993,245
Rendering servrces- Fees from students

reyenue from facilities equipment 8 4,455,759 12,112,216
Other income 9 4,952,512 l,u7,gg5

erchange transactionsRevenue frcm
224976288 20635?,4#

Total revenue
402,216,f/i, 320,125p5tr,

Use goods md services

Erpenoes

Employee cosre
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Transfer to Mentored

Total crpenses
29,805,250
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Other gains

Gain on sale of Scrap t7 321,150
Total o&er gains

32r.150
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TITIKA TECHMCAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCI.AL STATEMENTS
FOR TTIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

XtV. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONAS AT 2021

The Financial statements s€t out on pages I to 32 were signed on behalf of the Institute Board of Governors by:

of GoverrrortChaimran

l}hMay,2022.
ICPAK 2t023

l}|&l\/ray,2022.

Principal

L}nMay,2022.

2

Assets

Cunrnt sssets

l8 267,522,752 273,806.t95
l9 90472.210 45,192,905

valenb

from

and cash

Receivables transactions

transactions 37,957,500
rrtnt AssetsTotal 357994962 356p45,60r

20 1,849.334.56t 1,831,133,975

Non-current assets

ossets 2t 6,232,000
Total Non-current Asseb 1,855,56656r 1,8311133,975

Total rssets 2,213,561523 2,18810901475
Uebilideg

22 14,395,774 23,437,2M
from customers

tansactionsTrade other

Curent liabillties

23 1,155,40 1,146.240
24 1,332.476 34.7U.421

Totel Curcnt Llabilities
to mentored

t6$73,690 59367,865

Non-current liabilitiei
tncome 25 I I,l l3./rc0

Total Nou-current Itabtlities 11.113100

Total liebillties 16,973,690 70A8,^e6s
Reserves

Accumulated 439.534.2M 345,686,430
Revaluation reserve 583,477,599 583,477.589

1,173,676.039 l,lgg,435,l92
Total Reselves 2,196,687933 2,117$99211

Total Liabilitics and Reserves 2,213,561523 2,188,080176
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THII(A TECIINICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

xvr. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE ENDED 30 JI.II\E 2O2rYEAR

Cash from

177.U0-000 224355000
125.095-804 192.554.5t7

4.455-758 t2,1t2.216
5,273.662 1247995

312.065224 430,269J28

(s4,304,086) (7t,07s.4701
(l ls,9l9.ls9) (69.t39.6241

(3,596.705) (2,972.4t2\
(61,s39"992) (10,.147.903)

0 (3.700.000)

Q35,459,9421 (157335.40)
76605282 272J.34,319

(82.888.725) (85,840r09)

(82,888,725) (8s340809)

0 4,075.600

0 4'075.600
(6J,83.4/,sr l9l,l69,ll0

Cash and cash equivalents at I JIJLY 2O2O

from the

costs

and 20
tn

activities

Transfers from other Government entrtr es/Govt.
from students

Net h flows

of
Rental from and
Other income

Total

of
Remrmeration of

and

Total
cash

Cash from in
Purchase of

Cash flows from

Net in cash and cash

82.637.086
C-ash and cash ts at 30 JUhl-E 2020 18 267522J52 273306.196
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCI.AL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

xvIII.
1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORIT,IATION
Thika Technical Training Institute is established by and derives its authority dnd
accountability from PFM Act, the State Corporations Act and fhe TVET Act. The institute
is established under the TVET Act/ 2013 Act via certificate number
TVETAlPublic/TVC/000812017. The krstitute is wholly owned by the Government of
I(enya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is to provide quality training
in technical, industrial, vocational md enhepreneurship. The mandate of the institute is
uaining flrough the Education Act Cap 211 under the first schedule. It is also guided through
its operations by other Acts of Parliament like KNEC Act, TSC Act, KIE Act KASNEB Act
and others

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measurement at rovalued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipmant,
marketable securities and financial instuments at fair value, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and achrarially detennined liabilities at their present value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnternational public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and asstunptions. It also requires
rnanagement to exercise judgement in the process of applying the institute's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note
5

The finmcial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of Thika Technical Training Institute.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the pFM Act, the State
Corporations Act, flre TVET Act, and International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting polioies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR EI{DED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conrinu ed)

3. ADOPTION OFNEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

l.

Improvements
to IPSAS

Other
a) Amendments to IpsAS 13, to incrude the appropriate

references to IPSAS ou impairmen! in place of a, ,,i.,*t
references to other intemational and/or national ,."o*tirg
frameworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and IpSAS 17, propoty, plant, and
Equipment.
Amendments to remove fiansitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IpsAS 33, First Time Adoption or
Accrual Basis International public sector efr*tirg
Standards @SASs) was approved.

.) PqA! 21, Impainnent of Non-cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS_26, Impairment of Cash Generating,tsseti
Amendments to ens*re consistency of impairment guidance to
account for revalued asselsln_thg scope of rpsas 17, property,
Plant, andEquipment and IPSAS 3I, Iotangibl, arrrt . 

--

d) IPsAs 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis trnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards @SASs).
Amendments to the imprementation guidance on deemed cost
in IPSAS 33 to make it consiste,nt with the core principres in
the Standard.

Applicable:1 January 2021:

to the institute'sThere is no of the
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR T}IE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE F'INATICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in

the year ended 30 June Z0Zl.

iii" Earty adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards n year 2021
8

IPSAS 4I:
Financial
Instruments

'Applying a single classification and measurement model for finanoial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset,s cash flows and the
objective for which the asset is held;

'Applyi,g a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instnrments sudect to impairment testing; and

reporting
information

by:

ttI JanApplicable: 2023uary
The of 4IPSAS I rs toobjective establish es for the financialprincipl

of financial assets and thatliabilities will andrelevantpresent
useful usersto of financial statements for their assessment of
the andamounts, timing anof s futureuncertainty cashentity flows.

4IPSAS I ofusersprovides financial statements with more useful
thaninforuration 29IPSAS

risk
risk

I anApplyrng improved hedge model thataccounting broadens the
lnents ofhedging arTangem thescope Theguidance. model adevelops

link anbetween sskong entity managcmeut and theskategies
fortreatnentaccounting helrnstuments asd of thepart management

IPSAS 42:
Social Benefits

social

rtA Ipplicabler 202sJanuary
ofecttveThe thisobj Standard ls to thelmprove faithftlrelevance,

andrepresentafiveness of thecomparability information athat reporting
itsmen[ty financialprovides statements about benefits The

infonnati on shouldprovided users ttrof financialehelp andstatements
financialgeneral -purpose assess:reports

entity;
(b)
c) provided

The nature suchof(a) benefitssocial thebyprovided
The offeatures thekey of those socialoperation benefit andschemes;
The suchof social( impact benefits on the s financialentity

{inancial and cash flows.
Amendments
to Other IPSAS
resulting from
IPSAS 4I,
Financial
lnstruments

a) Amendments to IpsAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
components of borrowing costs whioh were inadvertently omiued
when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to PsAs 30, regarding illushative examples on
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omittld when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Arnendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee conhacts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

Applicable: lst January 20232

initial
Am entsendm to ]PSAS 33 tod) the onupdate guidance classifuing
financial insffunents on of basisaccnraladoption IPSAS
which were inadvertentl omitted when 4IPSAS wasI issued.



THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TTIE )'EAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICATIT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange tansactions with other government entities are
measured at fairvalue andrecognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods,
services and property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable tlrat
the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the entity
and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recogni zej nthe statement
of financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over
the useful life of the assets that has bee,n acquired using such funds

ii) Revenue from exchange trarsactions

Rendering of services

The entity recoenizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage
of completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The
srage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a
percentage of total estimated labour hours.

V/here the contract outcome sanns[ be measured reliably, revenue is recognized
only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the siguificantrisks audrewards
of ownership have been tansferred to the buyer, usua[y on delivery of the goods
and when the arnount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield
discouttts estimated future cash receipts tlrough the expected life of the fiuancial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount. The method appries this yierd to trre
principal outsta,ding to determi.e interest income each period.

9



THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JTINE 2O2I

NorES To THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING poLICIEs (continued)
a) Revenue recognition (Continued)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rental income

Rental h.oTg arising from operating leases on investnent properties is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and includedin ievenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2}2ol2}2l w,ts approved by the board of governors on 4rh
March 2020- Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the
approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities.

The entity's budget is prepmed on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual
basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the
financial statements were recast frorn the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified
by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget
and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then
presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements
are also made for differences in the forrrats and classification schemes adopted for the
presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual arnounts and the acfuals as per the
statement of financial performance has been presented under note 3l of these financial
statements.

10



THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITI-TTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NorES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING pol.rcrEs (continued)

c) Investment property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including tansaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property.
lnvestment property acquired tlrough a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investnent properties
are measured using the oost model and are depreciated over a period of.ur years.
Investnent properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when
the investnent propefty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognizedin the surplus or
deficit in the period of de-recognition.
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

d) Property, plant and equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment

All propefi, plant aryf equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation andimpairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is d.irectly uttriU'utuUt" to theacquisition of the_ items. When sinificant parts of property, plant and eluipment arerequired to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizei ru"t irrtr as individual assetswith specific useful lives and depreciates tlr.- ,i*.dingly. Litr*ir"-*t en a major
inspection is perfonned, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacernent if the recognition criteria are iatisfred. All other repair andmainlsxanse costs are recogltized iu sruplus or deficit as incurred. Where au asset isacquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset isinitially measured at its fair value.

Depreciation on all other assets is calculated on the reducing balance basis
method to write down the cost of each asset, or the revaluei amount, to its

residual value over its estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings
Computer equipment

Rate%o
2

12.5%
25
12.s
30

ll
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

The assets residual values and usefi.rl lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at flre
end ofeach reporting perfod.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are detennined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying arnount and are taken into account in determinini operatingprofit/loss. On,disposal of revalued assets, amounts in the revaluation reserve rjutiog to that
asset are transferred to retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity.

e) Leases
Finance leases are leases that tznsfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are
capitalized at the comrnencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. The Entity also
recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability
recognized is measured as ttre present value of the future minimum lease paynents at
initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in
surplus or deficit.
An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the
asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term.
Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of ttre leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

0 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite usefiil lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
acctrmulated arnortisation and acctrmulated impairment losses. Arnortisation is recognised on

a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated usefrrl Iife and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect oi*v,fr"oges in
estimate being accounted for on a prospCtiue basis.

Computer software
Computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use flre specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated

12
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ANNUAI REPORT AND FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS
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g) Financial instruments

Financial assets

fnilial recognition and meosurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value tbrough surplus or deficit, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investnents or available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Entity detennines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables arenon-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impainnent.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Imp ai rm e nt of fi n oncia I ass ets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a entity of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairrrent as a result
of one or more events flrat has oocurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an inourred
'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the entity of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include the following indicators:

Impairment offinancial ossers (Continued)

reorganization

(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defauttsi

t3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARYoF'SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGpoLICIEs(continued)

i) Financialinstruments(Continued)

Financlal ltabilities

Initiol recognition and measurement

Fiuancial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 areclassified as financial liabilities
at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The
Entity detennines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus directly attibutable transaction costs.

l) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constnrctive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance conffact, flre reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial
perfonnance net of any reimbursement.

Confingent liabilities
The Entity does not recoguize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, tmless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

During the FY 202012021,the institute is engaged in various legal actions.
(a) A DCI court case against several persons including an internal auditor whose is the

employee of the institution who is under half pay. The outcome in favour of the internal
auditor may lead to outflow of funds that could not be pre-determined.

(b) The institute is a defendant in a legal action as per the notice of the judgement that was
entered against the institution on t9e day of July 2019 (case no. 345 of 2Al9 Thika), the
outcome in favour of the plaintiffmay lead to outflow of funds that could not be pre-
determined

(c) The institute is a defendant in a legal action KIAMBU HCCA NO. 205 OF 2019 BOG
THIKA TECHMCAL VERSUS GRACE WAIRIMU- the outcome in favour of the
plaintiffmay lead to oudlow of funds that could not be pre-detennined

l4
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(d) The institute is a defendant in a legal action THIKA CMCC NO. 10 OF 2O2O RUTH
WANJERI VERSUS BOG THIKA TECHNICAL- the outcome in favour of theplaintiff
may lead to oufllow of funds that could not be pre-determined

(e) The institute is a defendant in a legal acrion THIKA ELRC No. 30 oF II2}MWANGI
GICHERU VERSUS BOG THIKA TECHMCAL- the outcome in favour of theplaintiff
may lead to ouflow of flrnds that could not be pre-determined

{0 The institute is a defendant in a legal action THIKA CMCC No. 134 oF 2004 GEORGE
KARUGA VERSUS BOG TI{IKA TECHMCAL- the outcome in favour of theplaintiff
may lead to ouffIow of funds that could not be pre-determined

Contingent assets

The Entity does not reco gnizn acontingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset
whose existence is contingent on the occrxrerce or non-occturence of one or more
uncertain frrture events not wholly within the contol of the Entity in the notes to the
financial staternents. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and
the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
Duriug the FY 2020/202l,the institution did not have any contingent assets.

j) Nature and purpose of reserves

Thika Technical Training Institute creates and maintains reseryes in terms of specific
requirements. These reserves include:
- Accumulatedsurpluses

- Development funds

k) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy refiospectively. The
effects 9f thanges in accounting policy are applied pioipectively if retrospective
application is impractical.

I) Employee benefits

Retirement benefi t plans
Thika Technical Training Institute provides gratuity to its employees upon retirement
according to the retirement and benefits act.

t5
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NorEs To THE FINAI{CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING poLICIEs (continued)

m) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert contol
individually or jointly, or to exercise siguificant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors,

the CEO/principal and senior managers.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-tenn deposits
on call and higtrJy liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include arnounts held at the Central
Bank of Kenya and at various cornmercial banks at the end of the financial year. Forthe
purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term
cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which were
not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial year.

o) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figrres forthe previons financial yearhave been amended
or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

p) Subsequentevents

There have been no events subsequent to the finaucial year end with a significant impact
on the finanoial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021.

t6
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5. SIGNIF'ICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IpSAS requires
management to makejudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported arnounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of thereportingperiod. However, uncertainfy about fi1sss sssrmptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to tle
carrying rmounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on pafttrneters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assunptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptious when
they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values

Tlre useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
infonn potential frrture use and value frorn disposal:

processes

Provisions
Provisions were raised and managernent determined an estimate based on the infonnation
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note lg
Provisions are measured at the malragement's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect
is material.

The provisions applicable to the institution is provision for bad debts and its provided at 5yo
of the debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINA TCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6. (a)TRANSFERS rfRoM NATTONAL GOVERNMENT MINISTRTES

Note: Grants for mentored institutions is as per Appendix III page 32

(b)TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

7. RENDERING OF SERVICES

Income from rendering of services relates to compensation paid by the students for services
offered by the Institrnte.

8. HIRE OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

This is income earned by letting out the Institutefacilities like the ground and staff
l|lt:lr|uring the year nnder review, the institution did not hrre iut facilities to""
KISE/ECD due to Covid 19 pandemic hence reduced income.

l8

Unconditional
177,240,000 113,972,500

177,240,A00 113,9721500
Conditional

institutionsforGrants mentored 29,906,260

29,806260

Mnisty of Education
State deparment of
Vocational and Trainine 177.240.000 177,240,000

1t3,872,500

Total 177240.W0 177240.000 lt3$72,500

Tuition fees 131,u9,070 177,174,433
fees 18,834,27s 52,150I

Exam fee 40,492,110
Facilities and materials 19.758.323

fees s.234.240 3.366.662
of SeryicesTotal 215,568Or8 t92g93e4s

KISE/ECDE of facilitv
facilities 2.572.486 I 473

Rent t.361-272 t
Other income 522,0N
Total rentals 4,455,759 t2,lt2,t6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. OTHER INCOME

10. USE Or GOODS AND SERVICES

Center Fee 1.209-800
school t.970.250

and recoverable Iosses 26.025
Insurance Recoveri es I
Sale of Scra 321.150
Incorne from sale of tender I

serv!ces 4&,437 880,595
2,000 239.400

Total Income 5.273.662 1.247_995

Water
I

Acti
I I 730

and materials 19,163.091 32.r90.467
Admin fees 29 450 2
Iocal travel and 792 t7 I
Medical 665.409
Student cards 3,649.200 1,465.400

Student council I I
I 3

Industial attachment

3.600.713 I
958.259

1,275.000 1,418.945
Inzurance 1.548.884 3.333.843
Ifire 802.075 7t9

t87.828 760
Cafeteria 286.955 II 79

cost 75-750

194,800
ICT infrastructure 2,N0 Ifueland oil l7I

and 168I
Telecommunication and 57I
Train nses t4
Consuttation Fees 2
DRIVING SCHOOL EXPENSES I
Bank

481.298
Fees Refund 395.980
Mu I Grant 1.500.000
Total and 144,005.644 7tt

t9
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NoTEs To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinued)

II. EMPLOYEE COSTS

12, REMUNERATION OF DIR.ECTORS

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

14. REP{RS AND MAINTENAIICE

15. CONTRACTEDSERVICES

13.

40,777.861 40.511.617

597.290 579.960
benefits and allowances 3,787,800 3,840.300

9. 14r.r35
Total costs s4J04.086 53.918.873

383.000Directors l3 705 t2Total 705 2,972,412

and 56.898.039 t7 0l
1.558.000

Total 58,456,039 17,0t5,553

Propefi 61,459.618 9.996.698Investment
I5

342.350 362.00a
854.673 170.718
329.700 75.417

Total Renairs and Maintemance 62.986.34t r0,763,508

_&SLerty valuations

3,70o.fi)0

20
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

17. GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS

18. CASH Ar\D CASH EQUTVALENTS

Motor
I
6,355.268

and

33

44.694.131

Other assets not sed - Scrap 32t,150

321.150

Equity bank 7.413.952 2
24t.967.15t 2t3.643.014

I\,Iain

15,091.505
Cash on hand I10.213 10.059

Cafeteria A./c 591.391 229
NCBAExam Nc 2.326.864 98I

3,413 179
5.799 22.549

M 9-950 I3l
KCB 2.5t4 614.762
Total and 267.522.752 273.806.195

2t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conrinued)

18 (a)- DETAILED ANALYSIS oF cAsH AND cAsH EeUTVALENTS

19. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCIIANGE TRANSACTIONS

19(a) Current Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Financial institution Account
number 2020-2021 2019-2020

Shs Shs
i) Current alc - Fees Collection
Equity bank 0090292436622 7,413.952 s.50s-432
Barclays bank 031 I 190628 241.967.15r 213,643.014

Sub- total 29J81.103 2lg,l4g.u7

Exam fee collection a/c
NCBA bank 1,000231378 2.326.864 5.981.240
Sub- total 2,32/i,964 6.596.002iii) Development-

bank 2035938330 15.091.505 14.963.005
Sub- total 15,091505 14963,005

iv) Cafeteria a/c
Family bank 005000036290 591.391 229.824
Sub- total s91J9r 229.824

v) Mentored Inst
JVIrvea TVC- Barclays bank 2038121084 9.950 4.488.13I
Gichugu TVC Barclays bank 2038121076 5,799 22,549
Maragwa TVC Barclays bank 2038121033 3.4t3 28.348"179
KCB Kiharu 7272557405 2.514 614.762

Sub- total 21,676 32,859,959
Grand total 267.412.539 273.576.371

Current receivables
Student 92,068.154 47.024.7t3
Rent debtors 1.170.862 969.998

45.000
rment allowanceLess: (2.81 I.806) (2.81 l-806)

Total current receivables from exchange 90,472.210 45.IE290s

22
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t THII(A TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Valuation

Lald and buildings were valued by Benchmark Valuers Limited independent valuer on1020on market basis of
valuation. These amounts were adopted on 30rh June 2020.

20 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the fieehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts would be as follows:

2I. INTANGIBLE ASSETS.SOFTWARE

Buildings 550,366,012 9,196,1 l5 550,366,0I2

Lsnd 500,000,000 500,000,000

Motor vdricles 42,546,584 2,281,250 42,546,594

Fumiture and fittings 52,807,290 3776913.14 52,807,290

Computers 48,419,130 8261848.53 49,419,130

Plant and equipment 238,653,041 24810231.6 238,653,041

Total 11432,791,057 4E13261359 1,432,7911057

Cost
of theAt

Transfer from WIP 7.790.000
Additions
At end of the 7,790,000
Amortization and

of theAt
Amortization 1,558,000
At end of the r 1.558.000
NBV 6,232,000
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAIIVNG INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES F'ROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

23. REFT'NDABLE DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS/STUDENTS

24. PAYABLE TO MENTORED INSTUTIONS

25. DEFERRED INCOME

_Eade payables r3,806.938 23,1 58.095

Fees paid in advance 578.836 279-109
Total trade other payables 14.385-774 23.437-204

Caution money 1.155-440 t-t46.240
Total deposits 1.155-440 1.146240

Maragwa Technical Institute 3.413 28.348.179
Gicbugu Technical Institute 5-799 22-5149
Mrarea Technical Institute 9.950 4.488.r3 I
Kiharu Technical Institute 2.514 614.762
Fumiture account for mentored institutions l-3 10.800 1-310-800

1332.476 34.784.421

At stail of the year 7.037-800
Additions during the year 4.075.600

Totd deferred income 1t.ll3l00
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAII\IING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks includiug credit and liquidity risks and
effects of changes in foreign curency. The company's overall risk mauagernent prognmrme focuses
on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse
effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The company does not hedge
any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an established
credit history.

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
arnounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investrrents.

Management assesses the credit qudity of each customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and oflrer factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or extemal
assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The arnounts presented in the statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the institution's
managernent based on prior experience and their assessment ofthe current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
entitSt's ma:<imum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral
obtained is made up as.follows:

Receivables from exchanse transactions 90,472,210 90,472,210

Bank balances 267,s22,752 267,522,752

TotaI 3s7994962 3s19e4p62
At 30 June 2020
Receivables from exchange ffansactions 37.957 -500 37,957.500
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 45,182,905 4s.t82-905
Bank balances 273,806.19s 273,806.19s
Total 356,946,600 356.946.600
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I THIKA TECHNICAT TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCI,AL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

The customers under the fully perforning category are paying their debts as they continue trading.
The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible
amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered adeqtrate to
cover any pote,ntially irrecoverable amounts.

The board of directors sets the company's crectit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

llltimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who have
built au appropriate liquidityrisk managementframework forthe management ofthe entity's short,
medium and long-te,nn funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity manages
liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Institution under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The nnounts disclosed in
dre table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 monttrs equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2021
Trade and otherpayables ftom
exchange tresactions

14,385,774 14,385,774

Refundable deposits from
customers 1.15s.440

1,155,440

Payable to mentored institutions 1,332,476 1,332,476

Total 15.718.250 1r1551440 16,E73,690

At 30 June 2020
Trade and other payables from
exchange hansactions

23,437,204
23,437,204

Refirndable deposiB from
customers 1,146,240

Payable to mentored institutions 34,784,421 34,784,421

Deferred income I1,113,400 t 1.113.400
Total 58,221,625 11.113.400 70,481,265
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THf, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(iir) Market risk

The entity has put in place an internal audit fi.rnction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the
entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal accounting
and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's incorne or the value of its holdiug of furancial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for
managing rnarket riskrests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The entity's Finance Departrrent is responsible for the development of detailed risk management
policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee) and for the
day to day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entit5r's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.

27. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to exercise contol
or exercise significant inlluence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties include
management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government ofKenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity,holding l00olo of the entity's equity interest.
The Govemment of Kenyahas provided firll guarantees to all long-tern lenders ofthe entity, both domestic and
extemal. Other related parties include:

0 The National Govenrment;
ii) The Parent Ministry;
iii) Keymanagement;
irr) Board of directors;

The tansactions and balances with related parties during the year are as

Transactions with related parties
a) Grants /Transfers from the Government

Capitation from National Government 177.240.000 t13,872,500
Grants to mentored institution 27.306.260 0

Total 204,546,260 r13372500
b) Key msnaqement
Directors' euroluncnts 3,696,70s 2,972,412

Total 3,696,705 2,972A12
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

NorEs To Tr{E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrinued)

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

30. T'LTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under flre Ministry ofEducation State deparhent of Vocational and Training. Its ultimate pient is the Government ofKenya.

3I. CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Kenya shiflings (Kshs).

32. Reconciliations of statement of financial performance and Budget Totals

Authorised for 146,203,120
TotaI 146,203,120

Total Revenue as per statement of financial performance 402,537,439

Less: I Receivablefrom Transactions 0
2 Receivablo form Trarsactions t4

Total Revenue es

Total payments as per statement of financial performance 32l,gg0,gl5
Less: I from Transactions (13,806,938)

2 Depreciation charge (72,623,935)

Totd as 23sAseg42
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAIMNG INSTITUTE
ANNUAT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED:O rUr.re zOir

APPENDD( 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW T]P OF AUDITOR

#::.?lf#:i [t::lT,T# orissues raised bv the external audiror, and management comrnents that

GuldanceNotes:

use the sarne reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report;

obtain the'lssue/obscrvation" and'lnanagcmcnt oomments", rcquircd aborrc, frorn final cxtcrnal
audit report that is signed by Management;

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timefimme with the appointed Fooal point persons within
your entity responsible for implementation of each issue.

(iv) Indicate the status of '?.esolved" or 'T',Iot Resolved" by the date of submitting ttris report to National
Treasury.

Signature... ...

HAIINAH N. MBURU
PRINCIPAL/SECRETARY TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Date: 10ft May2022.

(i)

(ii)

1.0

management toengagng
DCI tooffice thehave

documents back in the
to enable for
ofthe financial

ailure to submit
financial statements
FY 2017/2018

Not yet
resolved August 2022

2.0
Institute's assets

to Insure The management insured the
assets FY 202012021tutes Resolved

3.0 Information
Technology (IT)
controls

m

internal Contols in

hasmanagernent come up
ICT andpolicy Steering

tn order to Resolved
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THIKA TECHNICAL TRAINING INSTITUTE
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR T}IE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

APPENDTX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Status of Projects completion

Muranga
TVC

I GoK - MoE
Fundine

7 years 261,365,109 No Yes

Gichugu
TVC

2 GoK -MoE
Funding

7 years 51,300,055 No Yes

Kiharu TVC J GoK-MoE
Funding

3 years 50,602,615 No Yes

I Muranga
TvC

261,365,109 23 1,065,109 100% 261,365,109 GoK -
MoE
Fundins

2
TVC

51,300,055 29,300,055 7s% 51,300,055 GoK -
MoE
Fundine

3 Kiharu
TVC

50,602,615 28,602,615 7$Yo 50,602,615 GoK -
MoE
Fundins
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2O2I

APPENDD( III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

The above amounts have been communicated to and'reconciled with the parent Mnistry

Finance Manager
Thika

Head of Accounting [Init
MoE- State Depar[nent for vocational and technical Training

siffi-*-

Break down of Transfers from the State Department for Vocational and Technical Trainine
FV 2020n02r

a. Recurrent Grants
Bank
Statanent Date

Amount (KShs) Indicate the FYto which
the amounts relate

Capitation - Quarter I 231tv2020 42,180,000 2020t2021
Capitation - Quarter 2 t8/0212021 42.180.000 2020t2021
Capitation - Quarter 3 1210412021 40.995.000 2020/202r
Capitation - Quarter 4 30106D021 5I.885.000 2020t2021

Total 177.240,000

b Development Grants
Bank
Statement Date

Amount(KShs) I-udicate the FYto which
the amounts relate

Kiharu TVC 2319t2020 20.000.000 2020t2021
Murang'a TVC 30106/2021 7.306.260 2020t2021

Total 27,306,260
c. Direct Payments

Bank
Statement Date

Amount (KShs) Indicate the FYto which
the amounts relate

Recurrent sant -Muranea TVC 22/2t2021 500.000 2020/2021
Recurrent grant -Muranea TVC tl4/2021 s00.000 2020t202r
Recurrent gant - Mwea TVC 114/202t 500.000 2020t202t
Recurrent grant -Mwea TVC 6ls/2021 500.000 202012021
Recurrent grant -Muranga TVC 25/6t2021 500.000 2020t2021

TotaI 2.500.000

d. Donor Receipts
Bank
Statement Date

Amount KShs) Indicate the FY to which
the amounts relate

xx
Total xxx

Sip

Institute
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